
 

Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB 
Solicitor 
 

Joint Transportation Board 
 
 
Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Council Chamber - Ashford Borough Council on 
Tuesday 5 March 2024 at 7.00 pm 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Members of this Board are:- 
 
Cllr B Heyes (Chair) 
Mr P Bartlett (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllrs. Feacey, Forest, Gathern, Joseph, Meaden, Michael – Ashford Borough Council.  
 
Mrs C Bell, Mr S Campkin, Mr M Hill, Mr D Robey, Mr D Ross, Mr C Simkins - KCC.  
 
Mrs C Drury, Mr G Cosgrove – Kent Association of Local Councils.  
 
NB: Under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme, members of the public can 
submit a petition, ask a question or speak concerning any item contained on this 
Agenda (Procedure Rule 9 refers). All requests to speak at this meeting must be 
received by no later than 10am on 4th March. Any petition put forward for 
consideration at this meeting must be received by 5pm on 27th February (Terms of 
Reference for the Joint Transportation Board refer). 
 
 
Agenda 
  Page 

Nos.  
1.   Apologies/Substitutes 

 
To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2(c) 
 

 

 
2.   Declarations of Interest 

 
To declare any interests which fall under the following 
categories, as explained on the attached document: 

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) 
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests 

 
See Agenda Item 2 for further details 

3 - 4 

 
3.   Minutes of the last Meeting 

 
To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Board held on the 5th 
December 2023. 

5 - 10 



________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Member Services    Tel: 01233 330565: 
Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk 
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees 
 
 
 

  
4.   To receive any Petitions 

 
 

 
5.   Update Presentation on Eurostar service to Ashford and the 

findings of the Business Survey about International Rail Services 
 
Update Presentation on Eurostar service to Ashford and the findings of 
the Business Survey about International Rail Services – Andrew 
Osborne, ABC and Mark Welch, KCC.   
 

 

 
6.   Update Report on implementation of the new cameras on bus 

gates in Ashford 
 
Update Report on implementation of the new cameras on bus gates in 
Ashford – Lorna Day, KCC. 
 

 

 
7.   Border Traffic Management Update Report (6 monthly) 

 
Verbal Update provided by Toby Howe, KCC 
 

 

 
8.   Highway Works Programme Update Report 

 
11 - 28 

 
9.   Parking and Waiting Restrictions Update Report 

 
29 - 32 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ashford.gov.uk/committees


Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members” below) 
 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on 

this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and 
the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that 
item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted). 

 
(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this 

agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the 
agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting before 
the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).  
However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a 
member of the public may do so. 

 
(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed under (a) and 

(b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as: 
 
• Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents’ groups or 

other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member 
was not involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or 

 
• Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with 

that person, or 
 
• Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, 

employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. 
 
 [Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the financial position of a Member, relative, 

close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is an application made by a Member, 
relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI. 
ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or 
having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give 
rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.] 

 
Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:   
(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf 
 

(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012, 
and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council’s Good Practice Protocol 
for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See  https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-
democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf  

 
(c) Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside 

body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement 
that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open 
mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained. 

 
If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this 
agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and Democracy as early as possible, and in advance 
of the Meeting. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

301 
 

 

Joint Transportation Board 
Minutes of a Hybrid Meeting of the Joint Transportation Board held in Committee 
Room No. 2, Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 5th December 2023. 

 
Present: 

 
Cllr. Heyes (Chairman) - ABC 
Mr. P Bartlett (Vice Chairman) - KCC  

Cllrs. Gathern, Forest, Feacey, Michael –- ABC 

Mr D Robey, Mr C Simkins – KCC 

Mr G Cosgrove – KALC Representative 
 
Apologies: 

 
Mrs C Bell, Mr M Hill – KCC 

Mrs C Drury – KALC 

Also present 
 
Cllrs. Chilton, Wright – ABC  

 
Assistant Director Planning & Development; Principal Solicitor (Strategic 
Development); Safety and Wellbeing Manager; Parking Team Leader; Technical and 
Transport Officer; Member Services Officer; Member Services and Ombudsman 
Complaints Officer 

 
In Attendance (virtually): 

 
Cllrs. Joseph, Meaden – ABC  
 
Highway Manager Ashford, Community Engagement Officer – KCC 
 

 

239 Minutes 
 

 Resolved: 
                                                               
 That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Board held on the 5th September 2023 be 

approved and confirmed as a correct record. 
 
 
 240 A28 dualling update report 
 
 The Assistant Director Planning and Development introduced the report and drew 

Members’ attention to the key points.  The Chairman opened up the item for discussion 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



302 
 

and the following points/questions were raised: 
 

• A Member commented that the A28 dualling delays affected residents in his 
ward because it was a blight on their ability to sell their properties.  He was 
grateful to the Assistant Director of Planning and Development for his efforts to 
hold firm and adhere to the original plan.   

 
• In response to a question about representations at any planning appeal by the 

developer, the Assistant Director Planning and Development said it was 
conceivable that the Planning Inspectorate might be amenable to receiving 
representations from local groups, including KCC Members for the area.   

 
• A Member noted that the costs of the project would be rising but that the bond 

was for a fixed amount, which may lead to a funding shortfall.  The Assistant 
Director Planning and Development concurred that this might be the case but 
that it was hard to know at this stage and therefore it was important to deliver 
the scheme as soon as possible.  The onus at this point remained with the lead 
developer.  In response to a comment about LEP funding, he explained that the 
developer had taken a decision previously not to make use of the LEP 
opportunity, which was regrettable in his view, and the large majority of this 
facility had now fallen away. 

 
• The Portfolio Holder for Climate, Environment and Transport said that he was 

still committed to the dualling of the A28, but that he also wished to see the 
development of a cycle and walking network alongside the dualling project.  The 
Assistant Director Planning and Development said the Council remained 
committed to providing good links between Chilmington and the Town Centre.  
He said consideration had been given to including additional cycling and walking 
links within the dualling scheme but that if this was not successful such links 
should be delivered independently of the A28 improvements. 

 
• A KALC representative said that the lack of delivery of strategic roads in the 

area was putting local distribution roads under greater strain.  He suggested that 
a circular ring road around the south of Ashford could provide a possible 
solution.   

 
• There was a question about the potential timing of the scheme.  The Assistant 

Director Planning and Development advised that the timeline from procurement 
to delivery would be in the region of 18 months to two years.  He estimated that 
400 occupations at Chilmington Green could be reached early in 2024.  
However, the main question remained over the delivery of the bond by the 
developer and any subsequent Council response.  He suggested that he should 
provide an update to a future JTB meeting, when more details were known.   

 
• A KCC Board Member advised that the KCC Walking and Cycling Strategy was 

currently out for consultation, closing on 10th January 2024, and this would be a 
vehicle for commenting on additional routes required for Ashford.   

 
• A Member noted that there were plans for providing a non-segregated 

pedestrian and cycle route either side of the dual carriageway.  She asked 
whether there was now a case for making this a segregated route, in view of the 
increasing use of electric bicycles.   

 

Page 6



 

303 
 

• A KCC Board Member asked about the progress on the planning appeal.  The 
Assistant Director Planning and Development said he understood that the 
Planning Inspectorate was currently considering the issue and he speculated 
that more concrete information could be available by early to mid-January.   

 
• A Member asked about the planning application for a McDonalds outlet on the 

tank roundabout.  He asked for assurance that there would be no consequences 
to the free flow of traffic on the A28 when the new outlet was open.  The 
Assistant Director Planning and Development said that he was reassured by the 
fact that KCC had not raised any concerns with planning officers on this point.  
However, he would have to check the file for this particular application to 
provide more detailed information.   

 
• It was agreed that if there was any further substantive information available on 

this item, the Assistant Director Planning and Development would liaise with the 
Chair with a view to providing an update to a future meeting. 

 
Resolved 
 
That the report be received and noted and an update report be provided to a 
future Board meeting. 

 
 241 Parking restriction times in the town centre and 

 residential zones  
 
 The Chairman introduced this item and suggested that parking restriction times, 

currently up to 10pm in the town centre, could be considered excessive and he 
questioned whether the restrictions should be stopped at an earlier time to allow for 
more on-street parking in the evenings.  He asked the Safety and Wellbeing Manager 
to provide more information on the Council’s Parking Strategy. 

 
 The Safety and Wellbeing Manager explained that there was currently a cross-party 

working group to consider the Parking Strategy.  The aim of the Strategy was to 
support sustainable business growth in the town, to provide safe and convenient car 
parks and on-street parking, to provide customer-focused service and consider best 
use of council land.  This was also an ideal time to reconsider and refresh residential 
parking zones, which had now been in place for over 20 years.  The aim is to provide a 
draft strategy to Cabinet in March 2024, followed by a period of public consultation 
before formal sign off.   

 
  A KCC Board Member advised that the Parking Strategy had been recently discussed 

at the Central Forum and officers had been invited to attend the next Forum meeting 
on 8th January with feedback.  The Member said he would report back to the next JTB 
Board meeting.   
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
242 Highway Works Programme update report  

 
 The Highway Manager – Ashford introduced this item.  The Chairman opened up the 

Page 7



304 
 

item for discussion and the following questions/points were raised: 
 

• A Member asked a number of questions relating to highways issues within his 
Ward.  The Highway Manager – Ashford explained that these issues were not 
on the current highways works programme, and any new enquiries/reports 
should be raised via the online reporting process.  It may be that the team was 
already aware of some of the issues, but the correct process was to log any new 
issues online.   

 
• A KALC rep raised the issue of dangerous layout and occurrences at the A2070 

Finberry Park junction.  He also noted motorists turning right out of the 
McDonalds road.  He mentioned that the cycling instructions in the area 
appeared to be inconsistent, and he asked whether the traffic lights at the Inland 
Border Facility could be triggered instead of timed.  The Highway Manager – 
Ashford replied that these were National Highways networks matters and any 
reports/issues should be directed to their online reporting system.   

 
• A Member asked about the Strategy Report provided at Appendix F.  The 

Highway Manager – Ashford said that she would seek more information on this 
report and feedback to the Member concerned offline.   

 
• A Member pointed out that the lane system at Drovers Roundabout was 

confusing and created dangerous conditions.  He questioned whether 
enforcement cameras could be introduced.  The Highway Manager – Ashford 
advised that there were no plans to install camera enforcement at the 
roundabout at present. 

 
• A Member asked for clarification over who was responsible for clearing wet 

leaves on the footpath to Eureka.  It was not clear whether this was KCC and 
ABC.  The Highway Manager – Ashford replied that this was a Public Rights of 
Way issue.  The Member asked her to make arrangements for someone from 
that team to contact him.   

 
• A Member asked whether the bus gates were currently operational, and, if so, 

when had this commenced.  He also asked whether the cameras detected 
motorists driving on the wrong side of the road when coming out of Sackville 
Crescent.  The Highway Manager – Ashford said she would have to ask 
colleagues for more information on this and feedback to the Member concerned 
offline.   

 
Resolved 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 

 243 Parking and Waiting Restrictions update report  
 
 The Technical and Transport Officer introduced this item and drew attention to the key 

points within the report.  The Chairman opened up the item for discussion and the 
following questions/points were raised: 

 
• A Member noted that cars were generally becoming larger and asked whether 

there were plans to increase the size of parking bays.  He also asked about 
provision of electric vehicle charging points for taxi use.  The Technical and 

Page 8



 

305 
 

Transport Officer advised that the size of parking bays could be discussed at the 
next Parking Strategy meeting, but he pointed out that bigger parking bays 
would result in a smaller number of bays available.  Regarding a charging point 
for electric taxis, there was currently only one electric taxi in Ashford but the 
Technical and Transport officer was liaising with KCC in relation to the 
possibility of installing a fast EVCP at the taxi feeder rank. 
 

 
 Resolved 
 
 That the report be received and noted. 
 
 244 Ashford HGV Enforcement update report 
 
 The Parking Team Leader introduced this report and highlighted the main points.  The 

Chairman opened up the item for discussion and the following questions/points were 
raised: 

 
• A Member noted point 5 in the report and said he thought that the varying times 

were confusing for HGV drivers.  The Parking Team Leader replied that variable 
times were desirable so that the visits of the enforcement contractor were not 
predictable.  The Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that the order was in 
place at all times overnight, but that enforcement visits were varied.   

 
• A KCC Board Member asked whether there were any plans to increase HGV 

parking locally.  The Parking Team Leader said she was not aware of any plans 
and added that a number of companies were using the pre-booking facility to 
ensure parking for their drivers at the Ashford Truckstop so they could avoid 
road-side parking.  A Member pointed out that there were only restrictions on 
certain roads.   

 
• A Member asked whether parking restrictions were suspended during Operation 

Brock and the Parking Team Leader replied that this was not the case.  
Restrictions had been suspended during Operation Stack, but they were kept in 
place for Operation Brock.   

 
Resolved 
 
That the report be received and noted. 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Queries concerning these Minutes? Please contact Member Services: 
Telephone: 01233 330349 Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk 
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk 

Page 9

mailto:membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



To:              Ashford Joint Transportation Board  
 
By:              KCC Highways and Transportation 
 
Date:    5th March 2024 
 
Subject:    Highways Forward Works Programme:2023/24 
 
Classification:  Information Only  
 
 
Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for 
construction 
 
 
1. Introduction  
 
This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been programmed for 
delivery in 2023/24. 
 
In summer 2021 Kent County Council published a Highways Asset Management Plan 
(HAMP), which included, as Appendix C, a five-year Forward Works Programme for the 
years 2021/22 to 2025/26.  this reflected the need to move away from annual programmes 
and to consider asset management activity a multi-year one. 
 
The first part of the programme concerned the two years 2021/22 - 2022/23. Around half of 
the schemes included in that programme have now been delivered, and as a result we have 
now produced a new programme covering the years 2022/23 - 2023/24. As before, most of 
the sites included in this programme have already been verified by our engineers.  
 
The second part of our programme related to years three to five of our five-year programme 
(2023/24 - 2025/26). This too is in need of revision to cover the years 2024/25 – 2026/27, 
and the work required to do this is currently in progress. As before, our new years three to 
five programme will be largely based on data from our asset management systems, so may 
be subject to more changes as the schemes are verified. 
 
This programme is subject to regular review and may change for a number of reasons 
including budget allocation, contract rate changes, inflationary pressures such as material 
price increases, conflicting works, and to reflect our changing priorities. The programme and 
extent of individual sites within the programme may also be revised following engineering 
assessment during the design phase, and additional sites may be added or others advanced 
if their condition deteriorates rapidly so that we need to react in order to keep the highway in 
a safe and serviceable condition. 
 
Further information about how we manage our highway infrastructure, including our county-
wide five-year forward works programme, may be found on our website: 
 https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/transport-and-highways-
policies/managing-highway-infrastructure 
 
In addition to planned maintenance of our highway assets, this report includes transportation 
and safety schemes, developer funded works, Combined Members Grant schemes, and 
planned maintenance of public rights of way. 
 
Road, Footway & Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Schemes – see Appendix A 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8

https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/transport-and-highways-policies/managing-highway-infrastructure
https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/transport-and-highways-policies/managing-highway-infrastructure


  
Drainage Repairs & Improvements – see Appendix B 
 
Street Lighting – see Appendix C 
 
Transportation and Safety Schemes – see Appendix D 

• Casualty Reduction Measures 
• Externally Funded Schemes 

 
Developer Funded Works – see Appendix E 
 
Bridge Works – see Appendix F 
 
Traffic Systems – see Appendix G 
 
Combined Members Grant – Member Highway Fund – see Appendix H 
 
 
 
Conclusion  
 
1. This report is for Members’ information. 
 
Contact Officers: 
 
The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 418181 
  
Pauline Harmer     Senior Highway Manager East Kent 
James Bowen               Folkestone Highway Manager (Interim cover for Ashford) 
Alan Casson                      Strategic Asset Manager   
Earl Bourner        Drainage Asset Manager 
Helen Rowe    Structures Asset Manager 
Sue Kinsella    Street Light Asset Manager 
Toby Butler    Traffic Operations and Technology Manager 
Jamie Hare    Development Agreements Manager 
Nikola Floodgate   Road Safety and Active Travel Group Manager 
  

 

Page 12



Appendix A – Road, Footway and Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Scheme 
 
The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not possible to carry out 
these works on the planned dates, new dates will be arranged and the residents will be informed 
by a letter drop to their homes. 

 

Road Asset Renewal Schemes – Contact Officer: Byron Lovell 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

Lower High Street Ashford Between North Street and 
Wellesley Road 

Completed 

Shadoxhurst Road Woodchurch Between Coldblow Lane 
Hengherst Farm 

Completed 

Cage Lane Smarden Beult Meadow to (near) 
junction The Whim 

Completed 

Stanhope Road Ashford 
Reconstruction 

Between Frinsted Close and 
Leaveland Close 

Completed 

A28 Ashford Road Great Chart Lodge Place to Bethersden 
Road 

Completed 

Elwick Road Ashford Church Road to Station Road 
Completed 

Brookfield Road Ashford Concrete Rehabilitation 
Allenfield to Cross Stile 

Completed 

A28 Simone Weil 
Avenue Ashford 

Concrete Rehabilitation 
Between Drovers Roundabout 

and A28 Canterbury Road 

Completed 

Bybrook Road Ashford 
Concrete Rehabilitation 

Between A28 Canterbury 
Road and Nine Acres 

Completed 

Jemmett Road Ashford 
Concrete Rehabilitation 

Between Beaver Road and 
Musgrove 

Completed 

Church Road Mersham Railway overbridge to Blind 
Lane 

Completed 

Hastings Road Rolvenden 

High Street near to Rolvenden 
Primary School to property 
Oak View (at Great Job's 

Cross) 

 
Programmed 12th 

April 2024 

Road Asset Preservation Schemes - Contact Officer: Jonathan Dean 

Micro Surfacing 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

School Road Charing 
A20 to Joint OS Vision Hair 

Salon Complete 

Front Road Woodchurch 
From 2022 Scheme End to 
Bonny Cravat Public House Complete 

Shalmsford Road Chilham Highbank to Sunnyside Farm Complete 

Page 13



The Street Brabourne  
Between Scotts Lane and 

Canterbury Road Complete 

Pluckley Road Bethersden Fridd Lane to River Buelt  Complete 

Finn Farm Road Kingsnorth Bond Lane to Violet Way Complete 

Bulllane Bethersden Pot Kiln Lane to end of woods Complete 

The Hill Charing Pett Lane to A252 Complete 

High Halden Road Biddenden 
Telegraph Pole to Public 

Footpath Complete 

Surface Dressing 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

Frith Road Aldington  Ashford Road to Priory Road  
Complete 

Bethersden (Ashford) 
Road Bethersden 

Old Surrenden Manor Road to 
Forge Hill 

Complete 

Park Lane Bethersden Whole Road (Daniels Water) 
Complete 

Hinxhill Road From 
J/W Goodcheap Lane Wye With Hinxhill 

Goodcheap Lane to Spelders 
Hill 

Complete 

Military Road Appledore 
The Street to Kent Boundary 

(Kent Ditch) 
Complete 

Flood Street Mersham 
Chequer Tree Farm Road to 

Red Pad near Blind Lane 
Complete 

Canterbury Road Charing 
Squids Gate Lane to 30mph 

Speed Limit 
Complete 

Appledore 
Road/Woodchurch 
Road/Bench Hill Woodchurch 

From Bench Hill Cottage to 
Beech Tree Farm 

Complete 

Smarden Bell Road Smarden Burnt Ash Lane to A274 
Complete 

Bramble Lane WYE 
Harville Road to 
CanterburyRoad 

Complete 

Retread (recycling and re-laying the existing surface material before applying a surface treatment) 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

Pound Lane Wittersham Whole Road Complete 

Mayshaves Bethersden Whole Road 
 

Complete 

Pound Lane Brabourne  
Granary Court Road to 

Canterbury Road 

 
 

Complete 

Page 14



Footway/Cycleway Asset Renewal & Preservation Schemes - Contact Officer: Neil Tree 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

Okehampton Close Kennington 

 
Footway Protection Treatment 

Entire Extents 
 

 
 

Completed 
 

Tritton Fields (Incl. 
Tritton Close) Kennington 

 
Footway Protection Treatment 

Entire Extents 
 

 
 

Completed 
 

Marlborough Way Kennington 

 
Footway Protection Treatment 

Entire Extents 
 

 
 

Completed 
 

St Mary's Green Kennington 

 
Footway Protection Treatment 

Entire Extents 
 

 
 

Completed 
 

 
 

 

Page 15



Appendix B - Drainage 
 

Drainage Repairs & Improvements - Contact Officer Earl Bourner 
  

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Church Hill Bethersden 

 
Specialist consultant review of 
existing culvert capacity and 

options for providing additional 
capacity of culverts at site. Review 

completed and LLFA leading on 
additional catchment assessments 

as well as s.19 flooding 
investigation. KCC Highways Works 

to upgrade Church Hill Culvert. 
 

Works part complete due to 
poor weather conditions last 
year.  New culvert has been 
installed. New headwalls at 

each end of the culvert are to 
be completed once 

watercourse flows are lower. 

Swain Road  Tenterden Replace 110m of damaged 
pipework and install new gullies. Works started 19\02\2024  

Charing Heath 
Road Charing Instal new gully and 50m of kerbs to 

stop bank erosion.  

Works complete cleansing 
works to be carried out in July 

2024 

Great Chart 
Bypass Ashford 

Install 1 new gully and 20m of 
edgings to help reduce the flooding 

to the underpass. 

Works complete, pump requires 
service. 

Hythe Road 
Willesborough Ashford Replace the collapsed pipework 

and replace gullies. 
Works programmed for April 

2024 

Harville Road  Wye To replace collapsed pipework and 
replace gullies 

Works programmed for March 
2024 

 
 

Page 16



Appendix C – Street Lighting 
 
Structural testing of KCC owned streetlights has identified the following as requiring 
replacement. A status of complete identifies that the column replacement has been carried out. 
Programme dates are identified for those still requiring replacement.  
 

 
Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella 
 

Road Name Location Description of Works Status 

Birchett Singleton Replacement of 1 no streetlight Completed 

Canterbury 
Road 

          Kennington Replacement of 3 no streetlights One completed. Works 
programmed for completion by end 

June 2024 
Faversham 

Road 
          Kennington Replacement of 1 no streetlight Works programmed for completion 

by end June 2024 
Langney Drive Washford Replacement of 1 no streetlight Works programmed for completion 

by end June 2024 
Millbrook 
Meadow Singleton Replacement of 2 no streetlights Completed 

Station Road Victoria Replacement of 1 no streetlight Works programmed for completion 
by end June 2024 

 
 

Page 17



Appendix D – Transportation and Safety Schemes 
 
Casualty Reduction Measures 
 
The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within Ashford District, in 
order to meet Kent County Council’s strategic targets (for example, addressing traffic congestion 
or improving road safety).  Casualty reduction measures have been identified to address a 
known history of personal injury crashes. Current status correct as of 18th January 2024. 
 
 
INTEGRATED TRANSPORT SCHEMES 
Local Transport Plan funded non-casualty reduction schemes 
 

Road Name Description of Works Source of  
Funding Current Status 

22-AS-LTP-499 
Roman Road 
and Calleywell 
Road, 
Aldington 

DDA access 
improvements LTP 

Works are part complete. Further 
works will be completed in the next 
28 days. These are a centre line and 
reset of a gully. 
 

 
 

Externally Funded Schemes 
 
The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within Ashford District 
funded by external corporations whilst still meeting Kent County Council’s strategic targets with 
the road network.  
 
Externally Funded Schemes  
The Road Safety & Active Travel Group is implementing schemes within the borough of Ashford funded by 
external corporations whilst still meeting KCC’s strategic targets within the road network 

Road Name Description of Works Source of  
Funding Current Status 

23-AS-PAR-
733 
Golden 
Square, 
Tenterden 

New one-way Traffic 
management system & 
20MPH speed limit 

Tenterden Town 
Council  

Detail design complete, expected delivery 
October/November 2024 

 

OTHER FUNDED SCHEMES 
The Road Safety & Active Travel Group is implementing schemes within the borough of Ashford funded by 
Kent Lane Rental. 

22-AS-EXT-542TMA 
Bluebell Road Ashford 
(overbridge across 
A2070) 

Installation of new 
infrastructure to allow for 
remote CCTV 
enforcement of existing 
traffic prohibitions 

Kent Lane 
Rental 

Camera supplier appointed in January 
2024 awaiting contact details to setup 
site meeting to discuss camera 
locations. Expected delivery late 
Summer 2024 

22-AS-EXT-545TMS 
Sackville Crescent 
Ashford (overbridge 
between Sackville 
Crescent and Carlton 
Road) 

Installation of new 
infrastructure to allow for 
remote CCTV 
enforcement of existing 
traffic prohibitions 

Kent Lane 
Rental 

 
Works complete 

 

Page 18



Appendix E – Developer Funded Works 
 

Developer Funded Works (Section 278 Agreement Works) – Contact Officer Jamie Hare 

Scheme Name Mastergov 
File Ref  Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Church Lane  AS003513 Aldington Access to Electricity 
Condenser Plant In technical audit stage 

Court Lodge Road AS003477 Appledore Accesses to houses and 
public carpark 

Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

A28 Chart Road, 
Brunswick Road AS002081 Ashford Rearrange junction 

alignment 

Works complete, 
snagging works 

required 

Dover Place AS003051 Ashford Amendments to junction 
and works to the footway  

Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

Repton Park AS003074 Ashford Road N6 tie-in with 
Ordinance Way 

Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

Newtown Road, Designer 
Outlet AS003143 Ashford New traffic signals Adopted 

Austin Road AS003157 Ashford New junction and vehicle 
crossovers 

Works complete, 
remedial check 
required, March 

Victoria Crescent AS003165 Ashford New vehicle access and 
footway works 

Maintenance period 
complete; remedial 

works required 

Leacon Road AS003166 Ashford New vehicle access and 
bus stops 

Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

Victoria Road AS003180 Ashford 
2 new accesses and 

footway works in George 
Street 

Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

Hinxhill Park, Hythe Road AS003238 Ashford New signalised junction Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

Spindlewood to Repton 
Park AS003281 Ashford Short length of link Road 

Works complete and in 
maintenance period, 

final check due March 
'24 

Abbey Way Willesborough AS003415 Ashford Carriageway ramp 
Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Simone Weil junction with 
A28 AS003454 Ashford Junction improvement In technical audit stage 

William Harvey Hospital 
Roundabout AS003455 Ashford A2070 to be widened for 

2 lane approaches 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Page 19



Halstow Way AS003461 Ashford Provision of access to 
housing development Adopted 

Elwick Road AS003469 Ashford Provision of access to 
housing development In technical audit stage 

Victoria Park AS003483 Ashford 
Three new accesses to 
the park from Jemmett 

Road 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Victoria Road AS003503 Ashford 
Access to carpark at 

Powergen 2 
redevelopment 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Former Golf Course Bears 
Lane AS003473 Bethersden Access to housing 

development 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Little Oak Farm A28 AS003502 Bethersden HGV access to farm 
Works complete, 
snagging works 

required 
Little Randolfs Farm AS003508 Biddenden Field Access In technical audit stage 

Maidstone Road AS003168 Charing New access to housing 
estate 

Works complete, 
snagging works 

required 

Swan Hotel AS003395 Charing A20 widening and new 
access 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Millgarth AS003482 Charing New access to housing 
estate In technical audit stage 

Pluckley Road AS003506 Charing Footway and pedestrian 
crossing In technical audit stage 

Ashford Road AS003049 Chilham Bagham Place access 
and pedestrian crossing 

Maintenance period 
complete; remedials 

required 

Bowerland Lane AS003430 Chilham Resurfacing Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

New Road AS003507 Egerton 
New access to 15 house 
development + footway 
and pedestrian crossing 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Mock Lane and Coulter 
Road AS003169 Great Chart Laybys for gas delivery In technical audit stage 

Chilmington Bartlets Lane AS003424 Great Chart Passing bays and 
accesses 

TA. issued; Agreement 
not yet signed; works 

partially complete 

Chilmington Green Road AS003450 Great Chart Two new accesses to 
sewage pumping station 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Green Lane Chilmington AS003457 Great Chart Two accesses to new 
school 

TA. issued; Agreement 
not yet signed; works 

partially complete 

Page 20



Chilmington Green Lane - 
Parritt Land AS003461 Great Chart Access to housing 

development 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Chilmington, Pig & Whistle AS003466 Great Chart Access to housing 
development 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Chilmington Access C AS003467 Great Chart New roundabout on the 
A28 

TA issued; Agreement 
not yet signed; works 

partially complete 

Chilmington Secondary 
School AS003485 Great Chart 

Temporary construction 
access from Chilmington 

Green Road 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Chilmington Secondary 
School AS003492 Great Chart Temporary construction 

access from A28 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Chilmington Secondary 
School AS003493 Great Chart Footway and vehicular 

accesses to school  

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Chilmington Green Road 
junction with The Avenue AS003500 Great Chart New junction and Toucan 

Crossing 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Ransley Oast AS003423 High Halden Bellmouth and zebra 
crossing  

Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

Hopes Grove AS003472 High Halden Bellmouth and footway on 
A28 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Conningbrook Park Phase 
1 AS003452 Kennington Two new accesses to 

development from A2070 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Conningbrook Park Phase 
2 AS003456 Kennington Provision of footway over 

railway bridge 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Orchard Farm, Canterbury 
Road AS003484 Kennington 

Access to 30 house 
development + A28 

realignment 
In technical audit stage 

A28 Canterbury Road AS003514 Kennington 
New commercial access, 

pedestrian crossing, 
footway works 

In technical audit stage 

Rutledge Avenue AS003325 Kingsnorth Temporary vehicle access Works complete and in 
maintenance period 

Brockmans Lane, Park 
Farm AS003383 Kingsnorth New vehicle access to 

spine road 
Works complete and in 

maintenance period 

Secondary Access - Park 
Farm AS003437 Kingsnorth New vehicle access to 

housing development 

Works complete; 
snagging works 

required 

Page 21



Primary Access - Park 
Farm AS003440 Kingsnorth New vehicle access to 

spine road 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Finn Farm Road 
footway/cycleway, Park 

Farm 
AS003443 Kingsnorth Footway link over bridge 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Violet Way, Park Farm AS003471 Kingsnorth Pedestrian Crossing 
Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Blind Lane AS003476 Mersham Bellmouth 
Agreement signed, 

works under 
construction 

Ashford Road AS003475 Orlestone 

Access to housing 
development school 
parking and puffin 

crossing 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Marsh Road Garden 
Centre AS003512 Orlestone Access to housing 

development In technical audit stage 

Station Road AS003160 Pluckley New vehicle access Works complete; in 
maintenance period 

A2070/Finberry Park 
junction AS003154 Sevington Junction improvement 

National Highways 
Scheme Works 

completed 

Tank Roundabout, Chart 
Road AS003478 Singleton 

New McDonalds 
Restaurant + roundabout 

adjustment 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

A28 Chart Road AS003504 Singleton Toucan Crossing near 
new McDonalds 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

The Street AS003219 Smarden 2 new accesses and 
drainage Adopted 

Newtown Road 
Development AS003446 South 

Willesborough 
New access near railway 

bridge 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

The Long Barrow AS003463 South 
Willesborough 

Provision of access to 
commercial development In technical audit stage 

The Long Barrow/ 
Monument Way AS003464 South 

Willesborough 
Provision of 2 accesses to 
commercial development Adopted 

Hall Avenue, Orbital Park AS003486 South 
Willesborough HGV Access 

Works Complete, 
snagging works 

required 

Newtown Road AS003505 South 
Willesborough 

HGV Access to old 
railway sheds 

Technical Acceptance 
issued; Agreement not 

yet signed 

Page 22



Tenterden Site #1 AS002080 Tenterden 
Small Hythe Road, 

Tenterden. New housing 
development 

Works complete; in 
maintenance period 

Tilden Gill AS003215 Tenterden Junction realignment Works complete; in 
maintenance period 

Tilden Gill Roundabout AS003230 Tenterden New roundabout Works complete; in 
maintenance period 

Church View AS003299 Tenterden Replace roundabout with 
turning head 

Works complete; in 
maintenance period 

Sicklefield AS003458 Tenterden New access to 
development 

Works completed; 
snagging works 

required 

Warehorne Road, 
Hamstreet AS003451 Warehorne 

Access to housing 
development plus traffic 

signals and footway 

Agreement signed, 
works under 
construction 

Nacolt Brickworks AS003515 Wye New access to housing 
development In technical audit stage 

 

 

Page 23



Appendix F – Bridge Works 
 
 

Bridge Works – Contact Officer Helen Rowe 
 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Front Road Woodchurch Stone Bridge (196) – Structural 
lining 

In Design. Delivery in Late 
2024. 

Frogmore 
Lane Bonnington Refurbishment of Bonnington 

culvert (388) 
In Design. Delivery in Late 
2024 

Rye Road Newenden Refurbishment of Newenden (50) 
Preparing Structural 
Assessment Report. Await 
quote for relining work. 

North Of 
Drovers 
Roundabout 

Ashford 
Maidstone Railway Bridge (869) - 
Strategy Report and remedial 
measures 

Ground Investigation 
ongoing. Awaiting quote for 
Wingwall Investigation. 
Survey results are to be fed 
back into the options study 
report. 

Flood Street Mersham Mersham Forstal – Strengthening In option study stage. 
Delivery in 2024/25 

 

Page 24



Appendix G – Traffic Systems 
 
There is a programme of scheduled maintenance to refurbish life expired traffic signal equipment 
across the county based upon age and fault history. The delivery of these schemes is dependent 
upon school terms and holiday periods; local residents, businesses and schools will be informed 
verbally and by a letter drop of the exact dates when known.  

 
Traffic Systems - Contact Officer: Toby Butler  

Location Description of Works Current Status 

A28 High Street / Recreation Ground Road, 
Tenterden (13-0672) 

Upgrade of existing signal 
junction 

The junction should be 
completed and operational 

21.02.24 

 
 

Page 25



Appendix H - Combined Members Grant programme update  
   
Member Highway Fund programme update for the Ashford District  
 
The following schemes are those, which have been approved for funding by both the relevant 
Member and by Haroona Chughtai, Director of Highways and Transportation. The list only 
includes schemes, which are  

• in design  
• at consultation stage 
• about to be programmed 
• recently completed on site.  

 
The list is up to date as of 18th January 2024 
  
The details given below are for highway projects only.  This report does not detail  

• contributions Members have made to other groups such as parish councils 
• highway studies 
• traffic/ non-motorised user surveys funded by Members.   

 
More information on the schemes listed below can be found by contacting the Highway Manager 
for the Ashford District, Lisa Willoughby.  
 

 
 

Ther are no projects for this area. 

 

Page 26



Legal Implications 
1.1.1 Not applicable. 

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.2.1 Not applicable. 

1.3 Risk Assessment 

1.3.1 Not applicable. 

Contacts: Pauline Harmer / James Bowen 03000 418181 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
Parking and Waiting Restrictions Update 
 
 
To: Joint Transportation Board 
 
By: Michael Fairlie, Technical & Transport Officer (Parking Services) 
 
Date: 5 March 2024 
 
Classification: For information 
 
Ward: All 
 
Recommendations:  That the contents of the report be noted 
 
Summary:   
This report provides an update on schemes that are currently being 
progressed by the Ashford Borough Council’s Parking Service.  

 
 
Introduction & Background:  

 
1. This report provides an update of schemes that are currently being managed and 

progressed by the Ashford Borough Council Parking Service. 
 

 
Reports: 
 
2. Traffic Regulation Order Amendments 

We are currently in the process of adding all existing Disabled Persons Parking 
Bays (DPPB) into the traffic order. This will mean that all DPPB’s in the borough 
would be enforceable. Currently, only a handful of bays outside of the town 
centre are in the traffic order. 
 
In the same amendment, we will also be consulting on adding an additional 
school zigzag on Highfield Road in Willesborough (opposite and mirroring the 
current zigzag in place) and formalising the school zigzag in Mersham, making 
both lines enforceable. 
 

3. Tannery Lane 
The 15-minute parking bays was introduced in January 2024, and this seems to 
be working well. Compliance is very good so far, meaning that a good turnover of 
vehicles are able to park for short periods of time.  
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Road Markings 
A schedule of lining work was completed in January. This was to refresh existing 
lines and to install new disabled bays. Tannery Lane was the only new 
restriction. Works undertaken are listed in Appendix 1. 
 

5. Electric Vehicle Charge Points (New installations) 
Work is still ongoing. We are aware that progress is slower than we would like, 
but we are working with the contractor to get this phase completed at the earliest 
opportunity. 

• Civic Centre –11 points are live 
• Edinburgh Road Car Park – 12 points are live 
• Station Road, Tenterden – four points are live 
• Vicarage Lane (six points) 
• Elwick Place (six points) 
• Victoria Road (four points) 
• Adley’s Yard (two points) 
• Tenterden Leisure Centre – (two points) 
• Station Road, Ashford (six points)  

 
6. Electric Vehicle Charge Points (Replacing old equipment) 

We are currently liaising with Kent County Council about joining the 
ConnectedKerb scheme to take over the running of our existing electric vehicle 
charge points which are currently run by BP/ChargeYourCar. These are located 
in Elwick Place Car Park, Civic Centre Car Park, Julie Rose Stadium and 
Halstow Way. 
 

7. Electric Vehicle Charge Points – Taxis 
We are liaising with Kent County Council regarding the installation of a rapid 
charger for the use by taxis in the borough. The sites that were identified for this 
are not suitable due to space on the footpath and high cost of connection to the 
network. Other areas are being explored to reduce the costs of such a unit.  
 

Michael Fairlie – Tel: (01233) 330414 
engineering@ashford.gov.uk    
Reporting to Catherine Darlington, Parking Team Leader 
 
 

Page 30

mailto:engineering@ashford.gov.uk


Appendix 1- JTB March 2024 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Lining Schedule – January 2024 
Location Description of scheme Status 
Vicarage Lane Car Park 
 

Refresh of existing parking bays where worn. Completed 

Vicarage Lane Car Park Convert old electric vehicle charging bays to additional disabled 
persons parking bays 

Completed 

Tufton Road Refresh 54 meters of single yellow line 
Refresh 84 meters of double yellow line 

Completed 

Albermarle Road Refresh existing disabled persons parking bay Completed 

The Parade Refresh 118 meters of double yellow line Completed 

Little Chequers, Wye Installation of a new disabled persons parking bay Completed 

Pittlesden, Tenterden Refresh 338 meters of double yellow line Completed 

Station Road Car Park, 
Tenterden 

Convert old electric vehicle charging bays into a new disabled 
persons parking bay 

Completed 

P
age 31



Appendix 1- JTB March 2024 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Tannery Lane Removal of 18 meters of double yellow line 
Installation of a new 15 minute time restricted bay 

Completed 

St Johns Lane Refresh 522 meters of double yellow line Incomplete – Too wet 
(Running water from 
drain) 

Brunswick Road Refresh 456 meters of single yellow line Incomplete – Adverse 
weather 

Station Road Car Park, 
Ashford 

Refresh two disabled persons parking bays 
Refresh loading bay 

Complete 

Christchurch Road Refresh 64 meters of double yellow line Complete 

Bond Road Refresh 60 meters of double yellow line Complete 

Kipling Road Refresh 258 meters of double yellow line Complete 

 

P
age 32


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes of the last Meeting
	Present:
	Apologies:
	Also present
	In Attendance (virtually):
	239	Minutes

	8 Highway Works Programme Update Report
	9 Parking and Waiting Restrictions Update Report
	JTB Mar 2024 Item9 Appendix1


